
 
 

 

 
 

Council (Council Tax) 

SUMMONS AND AGENDA 
 

DATE: 

 

Thursday 26 February 2015 
 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Council Chamber, Harrow 

Civic Centre 

 
 
 
 
 
 

All Councillors are hereby summoned to attend the 

Council Meeting for the transaction of the business 

set out. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Hugh Peart 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Despatch Date:  [18 February 2015] 
 



Council - 26 February 2015 2 

 



Council - 26 February 2015 3 

 
 PRAYERS   

 
 His Grace Srutidharma Das, Mayor's Chaplain, will open the meeting with Prayers. 

 
1. COUNCIL MINUTES    (Pages 9 - 24) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2014 and of the 

Extraordinary meeting held on 22 January 2015 be taken as read and signed as 
correct records. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members of the Council. 
 

3. PROCEDURAL MOTIONS     
 
 To receive and consider any procedural motions by Members of the Council in 

relation to the conduct of this Meeting.  Notice of such procedural motions, received 
after the issuing of this Summons, will be tabled. 
 

4. PETITIONS     
 
 To receive any petitions to be presented: 

 
(i) by a representative of the petitioners; 
(ii) by a Councillor, on behalf of petitioners;  
(iii) by the Mayor, on behalf of petitioners.  
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS     
 
 A period of up to 15 minutes is allowed for members of the public to ask questions 

of members of the Executive, Portfolio Holders and Chairmen of Committees, of 
which notice has been received no later than 3.00 pm two clear working days prior 
to the day of this Meeting.  Any such questions received will be tabled. 
 

6. PETITIONS    (Pages 25 - 30) 
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme, a petition containing more than 

2,000 signatures will be considered/ debated by full Council. The following Petitions 
meet the threshold of signatures needed to engender a Council debate. 
 
A representative of the petitioners will read the terms of the petition on behalf of the 
petition signatories. There is a period of one minute allocated to present. A period of 
ten minutes is permitted for Members to debate the Petition terms and issues. 
 
Following discussion the Council may choose to refer the petition to the Cabinet, a 
Committee or Corporate Director to determine the matter, taking into account the 
views expressed by Council. 
 
 
 



Council - 26 February 2015 4 

 (a.) FUNDING TO THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR 
 

 A petition containing over 2,000 signatures has been received from MIND in 
Harrow in relation to funding to the voluntary sector and has the following 
terms: 
 
“Please do not cut funding for Age Concern, Citizens’ Advice Bureau, MIND in 
Harrow, Harrow Association for the Disabled & other voluntary organisations.” 
 

 (b.) SAVE THE BOB LAWRENCE LIBRARY 
 

 A petition containing over 2,000 signatures has been received and has the 
following terms: 
 
“We the undersigned residents would like the local authority to keep the 
library open at its present location 6-8 North Parade, Mollison Way, HA8 
5QH.” 
 
An Open letter from the Bob Lawrence Library Campaign Team and a petition 
from children attending Stag Lane Junior School had also been received by 
Cabinet and referred to Council for consideration alongside the 
aforementioned petition. 
 

 (c.) RAYNERS LANE LIBRARY CLOSURE 
 

 A petition containing over 2,000 signatures has been received from students 
of Nower Hill School and residents and has the following terms: 
 
“We, the undersigned, deplore the proposed closure of Harrow Libraries, 
particularly that of Rayners Lane, which serves a densely populated area with 
very few facilities.  This Library does excellent work with students and pre-
school children and serves as a hub for its diverse community.  The loss of 
this resource would be destructive to the life of the area.” 
 

 (d.) SAVE OUR LIBRARY - NORTH HARROW LIBRARY 
 

 A petition containing over 2,000 signatures has been received and has the 
following terms: 
 
“We, the undersigned, ask Harrow Council to reconsider the proposal to close 
North Harrow Library. Closure will have a serious detrimental effect on the 
local community.  It will also lead to a further decline of the North Harrow 
Town Centre.”  
 

 (e.) BROWN BIN 'GARDEN TAX' 
 

 A petition containing over 2,000 signatures has been received and has the 
following terms: 
 
“Harrow Council’s Labour administration recently announced, as part of their 
budget proposals, that residents could face a £75 charge for the collection of 
their brown waste bins. The bins, which are currently used for garden and 
food waste, would change to being for garden waste only – and would be 



Council - 26 February 2015 5 

collected once a fortnight for a £75 per year fee. We believe this proposal is 
an unreasonable 'garden tax' on Harrow residents, who already pay the third 
highest council tax in London, and who should reasonably expect waste 
collection to be included in their bills. The proposal is also unfair on low 
income households, and will likely have a disproportionate impact on elderly 
and disabled residents. 
 
We the undersigned therefore petition the administration/Council to drop their 
plans for a £75 brown bin charge.” 
 

7. LEADER AND PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS     
 
 To receive a presentation from the Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holders on 

business since the last ordinary meeting, followed by a question and answer 
session.  The item is allotted 20 minutes. 
 

8. CORPORATE PLAN 2015-2019    (To Follow) 
 
 Recommendation I : Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(24 February 2015) 
 
Recommendation II: Cabinet  
   (19 February 2015) 
 

9. FINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 
STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2018/19    (To Follow) 

 
 Recommendation I : Cabinet 

   (19 February 2015) 
 

10. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT INCLUDING 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS, MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY 
STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2015/16    (To 
Follow) 

 
 Recommendation I : Cabinet 

   (19 February 2015) 
 

11. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 TO 2018/19    (To Follow) 
 
 Recommendation I : Cabinet 

   (19 February 2015) 
 

12. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17 TO 2018/19    (To Follow) 

 
 Recommendation I : Cabinet 

   (19 February 2015) 
 
 
 
 
 



Council - 26 February 2015 6 

13. STANDARDS COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE    (Pages 31 - 46) 
 
 Recommendation I: Governance, Audit, Risk Management and Standards 

Committee 
 (26 January 2015) 
 

14. PETITION SCHEME    (Pages 47 - 60) 
 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
15. QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE     
 
 A period of up to 15 minutes is allowed for asking written questions by Members of 

Council of a member of the Executive or the Chairman of any Committee:- 
 
(i) of which notice has been received at least two clear working days prior to the 

day of this Meeting; or 
 
(ii) which relate to urgent matters, and the consent of the Executive Member or 

Committee Chairman to whom the question is to be put has been obtained 
and the content has been advised to the Director of Legal and Governance 
Services by 12 noon on the day of the Council Meeting. 

 
Any such questions received will be tabled. 
 

16. MOTIONS     
 
 The following Motions have been notified in accordance with the requirements of 

Council Procedure Rule 14, to be moved and seconded by the Members indicated: 
 
(1) E-Cigarettes Motion 
 
 To be moved by Councillor Adam Swersky and seconded by 

Councillor Anne Whitehead: 
 

 “Harrow Council moves to tackle the explosion of e-
cigarette usage across the Borough.  
 
E-cigarettes are a promising and effective tool to help 
smokers quit. However, they are also a highly addictive 
nicotine-based product, with a range of chemicals whose 
impact on “vapers” has not yet been properly researched. 
  
E-cigarettes, which have been prominently advertised in St 
Ann’s Shopping centre and will soon be promoted on TV 
screens nationwide, have risen dramatically in popularity 
recently, with 2.1 million users in the UK alone. This 
equates to over 7,000 users in Harrow. Sales of e-
cigarettes quadrupled in 2013, an exponential rate of 
growth for a product that is as addictive as heroin or 
cocaine. 
 
This Council congratulates the efforts of Transport for 



Council - 26 February 2015 7 

London to extend its ban of smoking to e-cigarettes, and 
welcomes the cautionary approach taken by cities such as 
New York. This is in line with the WHO’s recommendations 
to ban e-cigarette smoking in public places and in work 
places. 
 
To avoid a new generation of young people in Harrow 
becoming hooked on nicotine, this Council resolves to take 
action against the proliferation of e-cigarettes for uses 
other than to stop smoking.  
 
To this end, we call on the Director of Public Health and 
other Council officers to: 
 

• Robustly enforce the ban on sales of e-cigarettes to 

under-18 year olds 

• Remove any advertising of e-cigarettes on Harrow 

Council property and include a ban on e-cigarette 

advertising in the Council’s policy on acceptable 

advertising, with the exception of adverts providing 

information on appropriate use at points of sale 

Take all appropriate steps to discourage the use of 

e-cigarettes for any purpose aside from to quit 

smoking tobacco. Smoking prevention campaigns, 

particularly those targeted at children and young 

people should include warnings about the addictive 

properties of e-cigarettes and the significant 

unknown health risks.” 

 

17. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURE BY PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS, LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER, AND USE OF SPECIAL 
URGENCY PROCEDURE    (Pages 61 - 66) 

 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
18. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC     
 
 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 

item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential 
information in breach of an obligation of confidence, or of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

26. Information Report – 
Remuneration Packages 
and Severance 
Payments of £100,000 or 
Greater 

Information under paragraphs 1 and 3 
(contains information relating to any 
individuals and the financial or 
business affairs of any particular 
person, including the Authority holding 
that information). 



Council - 26 February 2015 8 

 
 

19. INFORMATION REPORT - REMUNERATION PACKAGES AND SEVERANCE 
PAYMENTS OF £100,000 OR GREATER    (To Follow) 

 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources, Development and Shared 

Services. 
 
 

 Data Protection Act Notice   
 

 The Council will audio record items 5 and 15 (Questions with Notice) and will place the audio 
recording on the Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 



�

� ��������	�
������������
�� 	�
��	�

�

����������

����	
��
�

�����
��
�������
�
��������� �� �������������������������������� !���"��������#�
� �� �����������$�������%�����������&� �"�������#�
� � �
	
�����
���� �� '��(��!�������

�� )�����*������*�
�� �������+�����*��
�� ,�!!���*������
�� %�����*������
�� �����������"���
�� ������������-�"��
�� ,����-�."���
�� �����"����-�*�����
�� ,�����-��*�
�� ��������-�����
�� %�����-��/��
�� $���������
�� )�������������
�� -����������
�� ������&�""����
�� ���0���"�&�����
�� ,��&������
�� $��"��1�����
�� ���2������1�"( �"���+�
�� %"� ����'���+�
�� ��"(��'�����
�� %�����3����
�� '����3����*���
�� '������3������
�� ,����3��+����
�� ����"�,�0���
�� ����������$����
�� -�����$��*����
�� ,����4��������
�� -�����������*	�����������
�

�� $������$�����������+���
�� ,�����������
5� ����6������"�����
�� ���������������
�� ��������"��
�� ,���"���"��
�� �����"� ����������
�� 2����� �78&����
�� 2����7������
�� ��"���2���+��
�� ��������2������
�� 6������2������
5� 2�������2�"���
�� 2��"����2�"���
�� &��*�2�����
�� $��"��)���*���
�� $�����)������*����
�� ���������"����)������
�� 4��*��%�������
�� ���+��%����
�� ����)�+���%����
�� %������%����
�� �������%"�������
�� %����%������
�� �*���%/���+��
�� -����"����++���
�� ��"�����������
�� '���0������"���
�� ��������"����*�
�� %"� �������0�"�
�

�� &���"���������� �����"�
5� &���"���� ���0����������*�

Agenda Item 1
Pages 9 to 24

9



�

� 	�
��	� ��������	�
������������
��

��������
�

�������"��0�� ���*�/�"��2��������!!���*����3���'�����%��"�*������&��9�
�
�

���� ���� ��������� ��� ��	��� �����������  �!"��� ���#���"����
$%&����
�
�������!����'(��	
�������
��)���������$*��
�+�����,��)�)��
���(+���
�'�� ���
�)�-� 
�� ,'
�
-�(,'�-� 
�� +�
()�(���-� 
.� (�/� ,(��� 
.� �'��
0����-��
�
�

�1�� 	�#�	"���"�#������
�
�������!�� � �'(�� �'�� 0������ 
.� �'�� �2��(
�)�(�/� 0����-� (�)�
��)�(�/�0����-�'��)�
��$��3��/�$%&�4�+���(5���(����()�(�)��-��)�(��
�
���������
�)���
�
�

�*�� !�	�����"�������"����������
�
�������������"�*��  �� ���"��*������"������!���"����"9�
�
:"���
��;�4��*���2��������������"���:���"���"�6�������
�
�����������-�����������*	����������*������*������	 ��������� ��"����"� ��� "��"�
���/�������� �������!�4��*������������4���"�*9�
�
:"����
�;���"�����;����"�/��+�2��+�3�� �"���
�
������������ ��������"�� ��*� ,���"���"�� *������*� ���	 ��������� ��"����"�� ���
"��"�"�����*��0�"���/������������"����"�/��+�2��+�3�� �"��9�
�
:"������;�<���"�����/�"����"����
�
������������ ,����� -��*� ��*� '���0��� ���"��� *������*� ���	 ���������
��"����"�����"��"�"����/�������������!�"���1����*���!�2������2��+�1���9�
�
�

�6�� �����7������#�	���������
�
�������!����'(���'����,
���
.��'��8
��',.����'���(/
�4�(���(+��)4�+��
�
��)��
�
�

�9�� ���	�!#�������"������
�
�������!����'(����
�

10



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	�
��	�

:&;� �'�� �(+��)� (0��)0���� �� ���,���� 
.� ��0� &�� <� �,,�
=(�� 
.� (��
�,)(��)� ���� 
.� ��(��(�� ��-��(�
��� +�� )�(��� >�'� (�� �'�� ��0�
�
������)?�

�
:$;� �'���(+��)�(0��)0����������,����
.���0�$&�<��
�
���:&;�(�)�:$;�

+��)�(���>�'�(���'����0���
������)?�
�
:�;� ��(��
�)(����>�'�	
�������
��)���������&1�&�&4��(�(-�(,'�*�&�


.� �'�� 	
����@�� ����
�� ��'�0�� +�� ���,��)�)� �
� (��
>� .
�� (�
$%�0�����)�+(���
����0�6�<�����
��<��(��
>������	���������

�
�

�A�� ���"�"������
�
������������������*�"��"�"/�� �"�"������������"����"��"���3����/���"�����"���
��*������������*���*�/���*���������*���*��"��"���=����"����0��*�9�
�
:�������*�����/�"��)����
�>�"���!����/��0� �"�"�����/���� �����"�*?�
�
��#� 2�"�"���� �����""�*� ��� ����������� %"� ���� '���+� ���"�����0� 
�@�

��0��"����� �"�"��0� A��� "��� ��*����0��*>�  �"�"���� 3����/� -����0��
�������� "�� ����"���� "��� ������"� ������ �!� �������  ���*�*� ��� "���
����*���B�� ���"���9� � ������ ���� +��� "�� ��  ��"��0� ����*���B��
*���� ���"�������� "��������0�9� �1�����0� "������"���� "�����������/����
���������0�"������ ��"������*��*��������*������*�"�����!�������9������
����� �!� "���� ������� /���� ����� ���� ���0� "���� !��������� �� ����"���� !���
3����/��������9�����"���+�"��"�"���������*���� �����"���*��"�"����. �����
�!��"�����������!�"����������B����*0�">���"��*���!�����*���B��%������9C�

�
D����2�"�"�����"��*���!����*�"��"���2��"!�����3��*���!�������*���>�%���������*�
E���0�2�� ��F9�
�
���#� 2�"�"���������""�*������������������������������"�����0�
G���0��"�����

�!� ����*��"�� �!� ���"� �����>� 2������ �"�"��0� A��� "��� ��*����0��*�
����*��"�� �!� ���"� �����>� ����"�� ��*#� 2�����>� ��H���"� "��"� 3����/�
�������� �� �����"�  ��+��0� ���"����� ��� ���� �"���"9� � )����"��>� *��� "��
���"�����*� ��+��0����"����*�����"�������>����"�����������������0�
���0��"�*�/�"�������"���� ��+��0�"�����*��"�"�������� ��+����"����*�
������������� �����0����!���3��"���/�������!"���������!����."��*�*�
 ����*���!�"������ �"����.�/��+�#9��:������*���"�� ��+��0����������"�*����
*���� "���� "�� �������� ��!���� ������"���� ��*� "��� �������"�� !��� ��0��
�������0� ��*� 0����� ��""��0� "�� ��� ������*� ��"9� � ������ ��� ����� �� ��0��
 ��������"���!���*���*��������������!�������0�������������"�� ��"���!�
"����"���"9��:"� ����!"�������*�!!����"�!�������*��"��"��0�����������"��"�����
�/�� *���/���� ���  ��+�*� ����� ���"���"� ������9� � ��� �� �����"� �!� "���
�����  ���"�>� /�� ��+� "��"� ���� �����*��� �� �����"��0� ���"�����*�
 ��+��0���������"���"C9�

�
D����2�"�"�����"��*���!����*�"��"���2��"!�����3��*���!���I��������">���������*�
�������"��%�!�"�F9�
�
�

11



�

	�
J�	� ��������	�
������������
��

�%�� �# �"	�B#���"������
�
�����"��"��"���� ������H���"�������*������������*9�
�
�

�&�� ���"�"���C������8������	��������
�
:�������*�����/�"���������B��2�"�"����%�����>���������������*�"/�� �"�"�����
���"�����0������>������0��"��������!����/��
�
��#� 2�"�"���� �����""�*� ��� "��� 3�"��� I�*� �������"���� ���"�����0�

�  ��.���"���� @>���� ��0��"����� �"�"��0� A��� "��� ��*����0��*� /���� "��
�����"����"����"���0��"�"�����"������ �����"��"�3����/������������� �"�
!��/��*� "�������� "�����"�����"��� ���3�"���I�*9� ���������� ���3����/�
��������"����"����"����.��"��0���"�����"�����������"����!��.���������!���
*�������0� "�����"�>� I*���"���>� % ��"� K� 4������� "�� ���� "��� ����*��"�� �!�
3����/9C�

�
���#� 2�"�"���� �����""�*� ���L��� ���"�����0� �  ��.���"���� J>���� ��0��"�����

�"�"��0� A��>� "��� ��*����0��*>� ���� *�� ��� ��������*� ��� "���  �� �����
!����3����/��������B���*�����"��"����"��������3����/���"�����"��9������
��"�� ���"��� ��� �� �"���  ��"� �!� 3����/B�� �������"�M� ��� �� ����� !���
 ��!�����������������>�������!��� "��"������*�"������0� ��� "�����"�>���*���
���"��0�  ����� !��� ����� ������ 0��� �� ��*� ����"���� ��0�����"����9��
2�"�"���� 3����/� �*�����"��"���� �0����"� ������0� "��� ��"�� ���"��� ;�
3����/B�����"���������"9�

�
����#� &���"��/������*����"������"��"��!�"��� �"�"����9�
�
�������!����'(���'��,���
���+����.����)��
��'���=��=�>�(�)�������/�
	
00�����.
���
��)��(�
���
�
�

�$�� ���!�����!��������"�����!���7�����#�	���������
�
��#� ����4��*����!�"����������>������������&��*�2����>���"��*���*�"����"���

��0���0�"��0�"������������"�>��������0�����*� �� ������������"������"�
��*���������"��0M�

�
���#� 7"������������ �!� "����������� � �+����*N� ��� ��+�*� H���"����� �!� "���

4��*����!�"�����������/�����/����*������� ��*�*�"�9�
�
�

���� ����"����������	�"����D�	#�"���:���!������"!�����"	�;���
�
�������!����'(�������'(����
�5>

)4�!����
��
.��
��/�(�)���(���4�
�
�(�� �
=���0���� ���
�(�
�4� +�� (,,
���)� �
� �'�� ,
��� 
.� 	'�.�
�2����=��:��()�
.��()����=��;�
.��'���
�)
�� 
�
�-'�
.��(��
>4�>�'�
�..���� .�
0�(� )(��� �
� +�� )����0��)�(�)� �� (��
�)(����>�'� �'�� ���0��
(�)��
�)�
���-
=����-�	'�.��..����,
�����
�

12



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	�
@�	�

�
��� �(��� �
��� :"�� �(=
��� 
.� �'�� �
�
�;�� � ������������ ���>� ���*�>� ,�!!�
��*�����>� %��� ��*�����>� -����>� -��/�>� ������>� &�""���>� &����>� &�����>�
1����>�1�"( �"���+>�'����>�3����*��>�3�����>�$��*���>�����+��>�������>������>�
7B&���>� 2���+�>� 2�����>� 2����>� )������*���>� )�����>� ���+�� %���>� ����
)�+���%���>�%������%���>�%���+����%�����>�$�������%�����>�%/���+�>�������
��*����"����*9�
�
�-(�����'���
�
���������������������*>����"��>�����-�"�>�-�."��>�-�*����>�
�����>� �������>� '���+>� 3���>� 3��+���>� ,�0��>� $���>� 4�������>� ������*	
���������>� ���������>� ������ ��"�>� ,���"� ��"�>� 7�����>� 2�����>� 2��"����
2�"��>�)���*��>�%������>�%"������>����++�����*����0�"9�
�
�+��(��� � ���� ������ !��� ���� ������ ����������� ����� ����>� �����������
'���0������"��9�
�
�

���� ����!�������������	�#�	"�7���������"	������������$%&�E&1���
�
�������!�� ��'(�� �'�� ��=��)��(/��
��/���(��0����$%&�E&1�+��(-���)�
.
��,�+��(�
��
���'��	
����@��>�+�����
�
�

�1�� ����"��� ���!�C�!���������������������	����
�
�������!����'(����
�
:&;� �'�����0��
.���.�������
.��'������
�� 
(�)�+��(-���)?�

�
:$;� (��'
��/�+��)���-(��)��
��'��!����
��
.���(����(�)������(���4��

.
��
>�-� �
�����(�
��>�'� �'�� �
��.
�
� �
�)��� .
�� ��(���� (�)�
�(F
��	
���(���4� �
�0(5��(�/��'(�-��� �
� �'�� ���0��
.� ��.�������
��G���)� .
��
>�-� �'�� �(����� !�,(��0���� .
�� 	
00������ (�)�
�
�(���
=���0�����
�����(�
�?�
�

:�;� (��'
��/� +�� )���-(��)� �
� �'�� !����
�� 
.� ��-(�� (�)� �
=���(����
���=���4� .
��
>�-� �
�����(�
�� >�'� �'�� �
��.
�
� �
�)��� .
��
��(���� (�)� �(F
�� 	
���(���4� �
� 0(5�� (�/� �
���G����(��
(0��)0������
��'��	
������
��.��'(�-���(���0()���
��'�����0��

.� ��.������� (�� (� ������� 
.� �'��!�,(��0���� .
��	
00������ (�)�
�
�(���
=���0���@�����������
�����(�
���2�������

�
�

�*�� ���!�������"����	����	�"���"�������������"	�����
�
�������!����'(���'��	
�����
�
:&;� +��
0�� (� �'(��'
�)��� �� (� ,�=(��� �
0,(�/� �0��)� +/� �'(����

>'�'� >��� +�� ��
�,
�(��)� �
� +�� �'�� ���'
���)� 	
���(���(��
��'�0�� �,��(�
�� :�'�� H�	�� �,��(�
�I;� 
.� �'�� 	
�����=��
"�=���0������'���?�

�
:$;� �
���+����J&��
��'���	���,��(�
��(����(���(,�(�?�

13



�

	�
=�	� ��������	�
������������
��

�
:�;� )���-(��� �
� �'�� 	'(�0(�� 
.� �'�� ����
�� ���)� 	
00�����

(��'
��/� �
� (��� .
�� �'�� 	
����� �� �2�����-� ��� �-'��� (�� (�
�'(��'
�)��� 
.� �'�� �	�� �,��(�
�� (�)� �
� (��'
���� �'�� ����
	'(�0(��
.� �'������
�����)�	
00����� �
� (��� �� '�� (+������
(�)?�

�
:�;� (-���� �
� F
�� �'�� �
�)
��  
�
�-'�@� H����
��� 	"�� 3
���

	
00����I� �
� +�� .
�0�)� ��)��� ����
�� &%$� 
.� �'�� �
�(��
�
=���0���� ���� &A6$� (�)� �
� )���-(��� �
� ���'� 3
��� 	
00�����
�'
���.����
���������(�/� .
�� �'��,�
,��� .����
��-�
.� �'���	��
�,��(�
�4� ����)�-� �'�� �..���=�� 
=���-'�� 
.� �'�� �	�� �,��(�
��
(�)��'��(,,
��0����
.�!����
�����

�
�

�6�� ���������������#�!���!���������"���	"������#���"������
�
�������!����'(����
�
:&;� �'����=��)���(��(����-��(�
��4�(��)��(��)�(���,,��)2�$�
.��'��

��,
��� +�� (-���)4� �� ,�(��� 
.� �'�� �2���-� ��(��(�� ��
��)����
���������'��	
������
�?�

�
:$;� �'�� 	
������
�� +�� (0��)�)� �
� (��
>� .
�� 	(+���� �
� 0(5��

())�
��� �
� �'��	(,�(����
-�(00��(��
�����)� ��,(�(-�(,'���9�

.��'����,
����

�
�

�9�� ���"�"����������	�����	�����	�!#����#������
�
�������!����'(���'����=��)�	
���(�����
��)����������+��(-���)�(�)�
()
,��)��
�
�

�A�� ��������� ��# �"	���8���!���
�
�������!����'(���
�
:&;� � ���+��())�)��
��'���
������,(��/����?�
�
:$;� �'���0��
.�
=���$��0
��'���=���0����+������(��)�.�
0�J&%0��
�

J&%�10?�
�
:�;� �'���
(��
.�J&%%4%%%��
��'��� ���+����(>���)�+��(,,�
=�)��
�
�

1%�� �!!"�"��� ��� 	��"���� ������������� �D���!"�#��� �#�!�!�  ��
��������	�"��!� ������	�#�	"�����!��"����"��#���"���8��K��
"�� ��"����� ������ #�!��� ���� ������ ��� ���� ������ !����
	���#�"�"����#�!���
�

14



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	�
G�	�

�������!�� � �'(�� �'���2,��)�����
.� J&4� �164&%%��(,�(�� -�(��� .��)�-�

�� ����-/� �..����/� 0,�
=�0����� �� ,�=(��� '
0��� (�� (,,�
=�)� +/�
	(+����
��&%��,���$%&��+��())�)��
��'��	(,�(����
-�(00��.
��$%&�C&1��
�
�

1&�� 	���#�"�����������������
�
�������!����'(���'��	
00���/��(.��/���(��+��()
,��)��
�
�

1$�� �����8� ��#��� �����!"��� ���������"�� ��#��� 3#��"	�� �����
$%&�C&1���
�
�������!�� � �'(�� �'�� �(��
>� �
��'� �..��)�-� �(������',� �
��'�
3��������(��$%&�C&1�+��(,,�
=�)��
�
�

1��� ��	�����!�!�	����"�#�"�����	���������
�
�������!�� ��'(�� �'��,�
,
��)��
������
�(���'(�-���
�����)� �� �'��
��,
��� +�� (,,�
=�)� (�)� ()
,��)� (�)� ())�)� �
� �'�� 	
������
��>'����
(,,�
,�(����
�
�

1��� B#���"����8"������"	����
�
�����������H���"��������/����������*�/������� ��*�*�"����*����������*��0�
 ����*� ��� "��� �������B�� /����"�9� � ������ H���"����� ��"� ������*� /���*� ���
��� ��*�*�"�����/��"��0���*� ����*����"����������B��/����"�9�
�
�

11�� ���"������
�
�������!����'(���'���
�
��(��:;�+��
>�+��()
,��)��
�
��#� A���"�/��+�2��+�
�

���������������"��?�
�

•� ���"�/��+�2��+B����K�I�*� ��"���"���������� �"���*��� ��������
/�"�� "������������!����"������**����.���*�3��������"����K�IB�>�
��*��"������������ ��"�*�"��"����"�/��+�2��+�3�� �"���/�������"��!�

�����*�9��

�

•� ���"�/��+� 2��+� 3�� �"���  ���*��� �"��� ��  ��"� !��� "��� ������
�������"����*���������������*��"���������3����/9��

�

•� ����� ��� �� "���� �!� ����0�� ��*� �  ��"���"�� !��� ����"������ ��� ���"��
���"� 4��*��� /�"�� "��� �����"� �����������"� "��"� I����0� ��*�
3����/��3%� "���"�� �������0�*� "�� ������� 4��*��� ���"�����"�
3���"�������3%�����"9�

15



�

	�
O�	� ��������	�
������������
��

�

•� 3����/�B� ��'� !��*��0� ������"���� ��� *�� �� ��"����"���� ��/�
��� ���*� "�� �"������'B�� ��� 4��*��9� ��������>�3����/���'� ���
�. ��"�*� "�� ������  ��0�������!� ���"� ��*��"������"� ��� �������
������"����'�������� ����/�����!��"�����.������"���"�����!���������
���H����"���9�

�

•� 3����/� !����� �������� ����"�� �������0��� ��� "��� ����� !�"���� /�"��
/��"��������0���*���"����!�*����"��� ���"���-����0��!����.���*��0�
"��"��!�"�����"����������0�9�

�

•� ���� �������"��� '�������"� ��!����� "�� "��� �3%� ���� �����
*���0��0� "�� "��� ������ ����"�� ������>� ��*� ��*� "�� ��� ��������� �!�
/��"��0�"������"����"�/��+�2��+�3�� �"��9�

�

•� ���� /��+*��� �������� �!� "��� ��0����  � ����� ���.��*��� ������
 ���������� ��� �� !��"���� ������ ������ �!�"��� ��0� ����� ��� �� ��*� I�
�*��������9�

�
��������������������?�

�

•� ���"� "��� ��������� �!�3��������"�� ��*����"������**����.���K�I�
*� ��"���"�� ���� *����"��� ��*� "�� "��� ������"�  ��������� ���
���"�/��+�2��+��������9�

�

•� 3����/B����'������*��������!����!��*��0�����"���"���"������'�����
4��*��9�

�

•� ���"�/��+� 2��+� ��� �� �������� ��������� "�� 3����/� ��*� �����*� ���
 ��"��"�*���*���  ��"�*�/������� �������9�

�

•� ��������/���� "�+�� ����� �  ��"���"�� "�� ����"�� !������ !��*��0� !���
3����/���'9�

�
��������������������?�

�

•� ������ ��0��!����������'�!��*��0�!���3����/�����3%�I�0���*B��
P1��*����"���)���/B��!���'�������"����9��

�

•� ���"�"���3��*��!�2��*�%������/��"��"��'�������"������"������*�
�3%� I�0���*>� ��"�����"��0� "��� *�� �� ��"�������� ��/� !��*��0� �!�
3����/�B���'>���*�*����*��0���!��������""�����"9�

�

•� ���"� "���3��*� �!� 2��*� %������ /��"�� "�� �������2�� ��*� ���������
�������� "�� ��  ��"� ���"�/��+� 2��+� 3�� �"��� ��� �"�� ����� ��� ��
�������"������"���*������0�"��!��"���� ��"�����"������������*��"�9��

�

•� ���"�/��/����*������/������"����  ��"����"�/��+�2��+>�����"����������
�����������������"������"���*� ��� ��0�"��!� �"�� �� ��"����� "�� ������
����*��"�9C�

�

16



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	����	�

�������!����'(���'���
�
��(��:;�+��
>�+��()
,��)�
�
���#� A1������'���"��
�

���������������"��?�
�

•� ���"�3����/������������� "����+������0���!�Q=J������ "�����."�
!���� ������ *��� "�� ��"�� ����0� �� ���*� ��� �������"���
'�������"9� ������ ��� "����H������"��!�QGJ�� �����������*� ��� "���
-����0�9�

�

•� )���"��� "�����0�������0�-����0��� ������"�����"�4��*���3����/�
�������� �� *�� �� ��"����"���� ������ 0���"M� /�� ������� Q
>@�G�  ���
����*��"� /������� ���0�������0� -���"� 0�"�� Q�>�
=� 	� �!� /�� 0�"� "���
��������-���"�/��/���*����Q����� ����������""����!!9� ���������
�������!����!�!"����!�"���!��*��0�������"�*�"��3�����0*��9�

�

•� &�� �"�� "����� ��"�� �����0� !���� �� �������"��� 0�������"� "���
�  ���"����������*������""�� "�"������ "����� ��!�������/�"���� "�����
�/��0�������"�"��� ��+�� �!���3����/>���*� ��"��"���������*��"��
!����"�������"�9�

�
���������������������

�

•� ���� �� ����*��"�*� ������ �!� "��� Q=J�� �!� ��"�� /����  �"� ���������
 ��������������������������*�����*������/������������� "�� !��!���
�����"�"�"����*�"���9�

�

•� 3����/��������������*����������!����!��*��0�!����"����������"���
'�������"9�

�

•� ����4������������"�������� ����� �������� ��� "����� !������� "�� ������
"������/�������"����"��0�"���!������*����!���3����/9�

�

•� ���� 4����� �������"���� ���"������ �!� "��� � "����� ���*� ��"� ��� "���
P��+�� 2��"� ��*0�"B� ������"�"���� ��� ��� ��"���� �����/� /�"���"� ���
�*�������� "��"� ��� "����� �������"��� 0�������"B�� !������� "��
 �� ����� ��  ��"� 3����/��������>� ��� �**�"���� "�� "��� Q=J�� �!� ��"��
����0��� ���*����3����/>�"��"�������*��0�"��"�������"�9��

�
���������������������

�

•� 3����/� �������� ���*����� "��� Q=J�� �!� ��"�� �� ���*� ��� "���
�������"���'�������"����3����/�����������*���������*��"�9��

�

•� ��� ��� ��0�� !��� �� !������ !��*��0� 0���"� !��� 3����/� �������� !����
���"����0�������"9�

�

•� 3����/� �������� /���� ���"����� "�� ��� � ��� ��*� �����"� ����"� "���
������ �!� "��� ��"�� ��*� "��� *���0�� "���� ����*� *�� "�� ���� ������
�������"���9C�

17



�

	��
�	� ��������	�
������������
��

�
�������!����'(���'���
�
��(��:;�+��
>�+��()
,��)9�
�
����#� A����������0����"���.�&�*0��0�
�

��������������"��?�
�

•� :"������������"���"�*�"��"�"���L$���������������������������Q
��
�������� "�� "�.� *�*0��0� ��� ���"���"������ ��� ������ ����� ����9��
&���� ��0�����"����������

�
�� "�����"����������"��"�.�*�*0��0�"����"����������������*������

����� ;� ����0�� "�� 0��� �� ������ �*���"���� "�� "��� J=� ��������
����*����������"���������0���"9�

�

•� ����L$������� ��"������� ��� ��������"�� "����*� "�.�*�*0��0>���� �"� ���
��� �������� !��� 
� ��� J� �!� "��� /���*B�� "�.� ������ ��� "��� -��"����
7������������"��������*����/��&� ��*������9�

�

•� ���� ���� �!� "�.� ������ ��� L$� ��� ������ ��� ��!�>� /�"�� OG� �!� "���
1�%I�
������ ���������"����������0�"�.������9�

�

•� 4��0�� ���"���"������ ��� ������  ��� ��� ��""��� ��� JR� ��� ��� ���"��
"�.���0�������>�/������������������������ ���� �"����R9�

�
��������������������?�

�

•� ��� �� ������ ��"����"�� /�� ���� �� *�"�� "��  ���*�� "��� ���"�  ��������
 �������������9�

�

•� 7��� �����"�� "��  ���*�� H����"�� ������ �������� /���*� ��� ��0��!����"���
�������*����"�����������*���������!����"���0�������"�"��+���0�
"�.�*�*0��09�

�

•� ���� /��� ����!�"� !����  ������ � ��*��0� �����*� ���"����"�� "����� !����
�����9�

�

•� ����L$����"� "�+���� ���*� ����� �������"��0��� !������ "�.����"�����*�
�����"��0�"�.�*�*0��09�

�
��������������������?�

�

•� �����  ��"�"������ ��0��!���"�.����"���>���  ��"��0�"�����"���?�
�

A������ ����� ��*������  �� ��� !���� !�����0� ��������*� ������� ��*�
�����0� ���"�� �!� ����0>� ��������"���"������ ��� ������ ���� ���*��0�
����������!� ���*���!�"�.�!������"�.����"���"��"�!�����"����+��"����
 ���"�����!���������9�4�����0�������"�����*���� ��0�����"�������*�
"��� L$� ���+�� /���*� ����!�"� !���� �� !������ "�.� ���"��� /�����
���"���"������ ��� ������  ��� "����� !���� �����>� �������0� ��"����"����
�����*� "��� /���*� "��  ���*�� H����"��  ������ �������9� � ���� L$�

18



�

��������	�
������������
�� 	����	�

0�������"����"����"���"��"����"���0"���!� ������!�����0���*���"�"��
��*�"��� �����"�����!� "�.�*�*0��0���� ���0�����"���"��������� �����>�
���*���� ��0�����"�������*�"���L$9C�

�
�

1*�� !�	"�"������K���#�!�������#����	�����	�!#���C�	�#�	"����
�
�������!����'(���'����,
���+���
��)��
�
�

16�� !�	"�"���� ��K��� #�!��� ���� #����	�� ���	�!#���  ��
�������"�����!���4����!�����!�!��#������!��4���!�����#���
������	"������	�!#�����
�
�������!����'(���'����,
���+���
��)��
�
�

19�� ����"���"����������"�����
�
��#� �"� 
�9�G� �>� ��� "��� ������� �!� :"��� ��� �<���"����� ��"�� ��"���#>� ��

������� ���*� ��  �� ����� "��"� "��� �������� �!� "���� !��� "��� ��������
���"��0�����."��*�*���"���"���������������!�������������"���%������9��
L ������"�>�"���� �� �����/�����"��0���*9�

�
���#� �"�
�9��� �>� ��� "�����������!� "��������*���"�����!� :"�������<���"�����

��"�� ��"���#>� "��� ������ �*���*� "��"� "��� P0�����"���B�  ����*���� ��*�
�������"��� ���"����!���"���*�"������"�����!�"�����������0�������������
"���%������� ��*�/��� �  ���*� "�� :"���� ��� �<���"�������"����"���#>�
�
�
#����"���?�����"�/��+�2��+�3�� �"��>��
��#����"���?��1������'���"�#>�
�
��#� ���"���?� � ��������� �0����"� ��.� &�*0��0>� ��� �&��������� ��+���
L�*��� "��� L�0����� 2����*���� 	� �������#� ��*� ��� �&��������� "�+���
��*���"���L�0�����2����*�������2��"!�����3��*���>�4��*�����*�&� �"��
4��*��>���*�"��������!�% ������L�0�����2����*���#9�

�
�������!����'(���'��,�
=�
���
.�������A�$�(�)�A���+��(,,��)�(������

���(��:;�(�)�:;�(+
=���
�
�
�	����� ��� ����"���� � ���� ��������� ����0� ����� ��� ��"�*>� "��� ������
*������*�"������"��0������*��"�
�9��� �#9�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Council - 22 January 2015 - 23 - 

 

COUNCIL EXTRAORDINARY  

MINUTES 
 

22 JANUARY 2015 
 
Present: * Councillor Ajay Maru (The Worshipful the Mayor) 
 * Councillor Krishna Suresh (The Deputy Mayor) 
   
Councillors: * Ghazanfar Ali 

* Richard Almond 
* Mrs Chika Amadi 
* Jeff Anderson 
* Sue Anderson 
* Marilyn Ashton 
* Mrs Camilla Bath 
* June Baxter 
* Christine Bednell 
† James Bond 
* Michael Borio 
* Simon Brown 
* Kam Chana 
* Ramji Chauhan 
* Bob Currie 
* Niraj Dattani 
* Margaret Davine 
* Jo Dooley 
* Keith Ferry 
* Ms Pamela Fitzpatrick 
* Stephen Greek 
* Mitzi Green 
* Susan Hall 
* Glen Hearnden 
* Graham Henson 
* John Hinkley 
* Ameet Jogia 
* Manjibhai Kara 
* Barry Kendler 
* Jean Lammiman 
* Barry Macleod-Cullinane  
 

* Kairul Kareema Marikar 
* Jerry Miles 
* Mrs Vina Mithani 
* Amir Moshenson 
* Chris Mote 
* Janet Mote 
* Christopher Noyce 
* Phillip O'Dell 
* Paul Osborn 
* Nitin Parekh 
* Ms Mina Parmar 
* Varsha Parmar 
* Primesh Patel 
* Pritesh Patel 
* David Perry 
* Kanti Rabadia 
* Kiran Ramchandani 
* Mrs Christine Robson 
* Lynda Seymour 
† Aneka Shah 
* Mrs Rekha Shah 
* Sachin Shah 
* Norman Stevenson 
* Sasi Suresh 
* Adam Swersky 
* Bharat Thakker 
* Antonio Weiss 
† Georgia Weston 
* Anne Whitehead 
* Stephen Wright 
 

* Denotes Member present 
† Denotes apologies received 

21



 

 - 24 - Council - 22 January 2015 

PRAYERS 
 

The meeting opened with Prayers offered by His Grace Srutidharma Das. 
 
 

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
The Mayor invited appropriate declarations of interest. 
 
Item 2 – Review of the feedback on the Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) 
consultation and consideration to retain existing scheme for 2015/16 and 
beyond 
 
Councillor Richard Almond declared an interest as he was appointed to the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau. 
 
Councillor Chika Amadi declared an interest in that she had been a member 
of the scrutiny challenge panel. 
 
Councillor Josephine Dooley declared an interest in that she had been a 
member of the scrutiny challenge panel. 
 
Councillor Pamela Fitzpatrick declared an interest in that she was a Director 
of Harrow Law Centre and had been a member of the scrutiny challenge 
panel. 
 
Councillor Ameet Jogia declared an interest in that a family member was in 
receipt of Council Tax Benefit. 
 
Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane declared non-pecuniary interests in that 
he had chaired the scrutiny challenge panel and worked for the Citizens’ 
Advice Bureau. 
 
Councillor Chris Mote declared an interest in that his brother was in receipt of 
the Disability Living Allowance and Council Tax Benefit. 
 
Councillor Janet Mote declared an interest in that her brother-in-law was in 
receipt of the Disability Living Allowance and Council Tax Benefit. 
 
Councillor Lynda Seymour declared an interest in that a family member was in 
receipt of Council Tax Benefit. 
 
Councillor Krishna Suresh declared an interest in that his mother was in 
receipt of Council Tax Benefit. 
 
Councillor Adam Swersky declared an interest as he was appointed to the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau. 
 
 

22



 

Council - 22 January 2015 - 25 - 

60. REVIEW OF THE FEEDBACK ON THE COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 
(CTS) CONSULTATION AND CONSIDERATION TO RETAIN EXISTING 
SCHEME FOR 2015/16 AND BEYOND   
 
RESOLVED: That the current Council Tax Support Scheme continue in 
2015/16 and in following years, unless and until a decision was taken to 
replace or alter the scheme at annual review. 
 
Roll call Vote (In Favour of the Motion):  Councillors Ali, Amadi, Jeff 
Anderson, Sue Anderson, Borio, Brown, Currie, Dattani, Davine, Dooley, 
Ferry, Fitzpatrick, Green, Hearnden, Henson, Kendler, Marikar,  Miles, O’Dell, 
Parekh, Varsha Parmar, Primesh Patel, Perry, Ramchandani, Robson, Mrs 
Rekha Shah, Sachin Shah, Sasikala Suresh, Krishna Suresh, Swersky, Weiss 
and Whitehead. 
 
Against the Motion:  Councillors Almond, Ashton, Mrs Bath, Baxter, Bednell, 
Chana, Chauhan, Greek, Hall, Hinkley, Jogia, Kara, Lammiman, Macleod-
Cullinane, Mithani, Moshenson, Chris Mote, Janet Mote, Noyce, Osborn, Mina 
Parmar, Pritesh Patel, Rabadia, Stevenson, Thakker and Wright. 
 

61. ROBERT DEANS   
 
Members expressed their gratitude and paid tribute to Robert Deans, 
Macebearer and Chauffeur, for his work and support during his many years of 
service with the Council. Members stood in appreciation. 
 

62. PAUL NAJSAREK   
 
Members expressed their thanks to Paul Najsarek, Interim Head of Paid 
Service, for his work and commitment during the previous twelve months. 
 
(CLOSE OF MEETING:  All business having been completed, the Mayor 
declared the meeting closed at 7.54 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 

 

 

CABINET MINUTE EXTRACTS 

PETITIONS 
 

Agenda Item 6
Pages 25 to 30

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Cabinet - 11 December 2014 - 1 - 

 
 
 

CABINET   

 

11 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
Record of decisions taken at the meeting held on Thursday 11 December 2014. 
 
 
 

74. Petitions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that  
 
(1) petition (a) below be received and considered with the report on ‘Draft 

Revenue Budget 2015/16 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2015/16 to 2018/19’ at item 14 on the agenda; 

 
(2) in relation to petition (a) below, in accordance with the Petition 

Scheme, the petition, once validated, would be referred to Council; 
 

(a) Petition:  Funding to the Voluntary Sector – Jaqueline 
Hooper, MIND in Harrow, presented a petition signed by 2,097 
people with the following terms:  

 
“Please do not cut funding for Age Concern, Citizens’ Advice 
Bureau, MIND in Harrow, Harrow Association for the Disabled & 
other voluntary organisations.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Cabinet - 15 January 2015 - 1 - 

 
 
 

CABINET   

 

15 JANUARY 2015 
 
 

MINUTE EXTRACT 
 
 

97. Petitions   
 
(1) Petition:  Save the Bob Lawrence Library 

Mr Anuj Chitroda, presented a petition signed by some 5,000 people 
with the following terms:  

 
“We the undersigned residents would like the local authority to keep 
the library open at its present location 6-8 North Parade, Mollison Way, 
HA8 5QH.” 

 
RESOLVED:  That the petition be received and, once validated, be 
referred to Council. 

 
(2) Petition:  Rayners Lane Library Closure 

Councillors Chris Noyce and Krishna Suresh presented a petition 
signed by 734 students of Nower Hill School as well as 1,555 adults 
with the following terms:  

 
“We, the undersigned, deplore the proposed closure of Harrow 
Libraries, particularly that of Rayners Lane, which serves a densely 
populated area with very few facilities.  This Library does excellent 
work with students and pre-school children and serves as a hub for its 
diverse community.  The loss of this resource would be destructive to 
the life of the area.” 

 
RESOLVED:  That the petition be received and, once validated, be 
referred to Council. 

 
(3) Petition:  Save Our Library – North Harrow Library 

Mr Kamal Shah presented a petition signed by 2,797 people with the 
following terms:  

 

29



 

- 2 -  Cabinet - 15 January 2015 

“We, the undersigned, ask Harrow Council to reconsider the proposal 
to close North Harrow Library. Closure will have a serious detrimental 
effect on the local community.  It will also lead to a further decline of 
the North Harrow Town Centre.”  

 
RESOLVED:  That the petition be received and, once validated, be 
referred to Council. 

 
(4) Bob Lawrence Library – Petition Against Closure 

Angela Hook presented an ‘Open Letter’ from the Bob Lawrence 
Library Campaign Team, signed by 24 people representing schools, 
community and charity organisations, authors and elected community 
leaders, outlining the community values of the Library by making 
specific reference to educational values and its provision as a 
Community Centre and Social Hub.  

 
RESOLVED:  That the ‘Open Letter’ be received and assimilated with 
the petition at (1) above which was being referred to Council. 

 
(5) Save Bob Lawrence Library – Safe Learning Zone 

On behalf of the children of Stag Lane Junior School, Nikhil Dev, a 
Year 2 pupil, presented a petition consisting of 140 letters in the form of 
drawings, including posters, explaining why the Bob Lawrence Library 
should be saved and kept open, including the learning values that the 
library provided. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the petition be received and be received and 
assimilated with the petition at (1) above which was being referred to 
Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

 

 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT, RISK MANAGEMENT 

AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATION 
(29 JANUARY 2015) 

 

 
 RECOMMENDATION I STANDARDS COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Pages 31 to 46

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT, RISK 

MANAGEMENT AND 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE   

MINUTES 

 

29 JANUARY 2015 
 
 
 
Chair: * Councillor Antonio Weiss 
   
Councillors: * Barry Macleod-Cullinane 

* Kairul Kareema Marikar (3) 
* Amir Moshenson  
 

* Nitin Parekh 
* Primesh Patel 
* Bharat Thakker 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(3) Denotes category of Reserve Member 
 
 

41. Standards Complaints Procedure   
 
The Committee considered a report which set out proposals to revise the 
procedure relating to complaints against Councillors. 
 
The Head of Legal Services presented the report and made the following 
points: 
 

• the Council had a statutory obligation to have a Code of Conduct for 
Councillors and a procedure for dealing with complaints against 
Councillors; 

 

• as part of the proposal looking at achieving efficiencies for Committee 
and its processes, it had been proposed to streamline the complaints 
process against Councillors; 

 

33



 

 

• the new proposals involved a strengthening of the filter processes by 
extending the power to rule out complaints which were frivolous and 
which were more than 6 months old; 

 

• the Assessment and Hearing Working Groups and the Assessment 
and Hearing Review Sub-Committees would be abolished and 
replaced by a Standards Working Group which would make 
recommendations to the Monitoring Officer.  The Standards Working 
Group would retain an Independent Person as its Chair; 

 

• where there was a disagreement between the recommendations from 
the Standards Working Group and the Monitoring Officer following a 
local hearing, this would be referred to the Committee for 
determination; 

 

• the Independent Persons of the Committee had been consulted on the 
proposals and were in agreement with them. 

 
During the discussion on this item, the Head of Legal Services responded to a 
number of issues raised and reported the following: 
 

• the punctuation correction would be made; 
 

• the term ‘Political Group’ would be clarified within the proposed model 
procedure; 

 

• there were very few sanctions available to the Standards Working 
Group if a Member was found to have breached the Code of Conduct; 

 

• it was a local decision as to whether local hearings were conducted in 
public or not.  Under the previous legislative regime, the presumption 
was that these meetings were held in public; 

 

• if Independent Persons were to be retained as chairing meetings to 
deal with complaints, these had to be in a format of working groups. 
Independent Persons were not able to make formal decisions under 
the current legislation.  This is why in order to retain this structure, the 
Monitoring Officer made formal decisions having considered the 
recommendations of the Working Group.  It was important to note that 
under the current system, the Monitoring Officer had not yet disagreed 
with recommendations from the Assessment and Hearing Working 
Groups; 

 

• there was no objection if the Committee wished for a report to be 
presented back to it in circumstances where the Monitoring Officer 
disagreed with recommendations made by the Standards Working 
Group; 

 

• the terms of reference for the Standards Working Group would be 
presented to a future meeting of the Committee; 

 

34



 

 

• investigations into complaints were usually conducted by officers, but 
could also be performed by individuals external to the Council if 
appropriate. 

 
A Member proposed that the report be deferred until the next meeting of the 
Committee to allow some of the changes requested to be made and for the 
Terms of Reference to be presented to the Committee.  This was not agreed. 

 
It was then proposed that the recommendations be delegated to the Chair and 
Vice-Chair for determination.  The Head of Legal Services clarified that 
delegations could only be made to an Officer in consultation with the Chair.  
This proposal was not agreed. 

 
Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (to Full Council) 
 
That 
 
(1) the new procedure for dealing with complaints against Councillors, as 

amended by the Committee and contained in Appendix 1 to these 
minutes be agreed; 

 
(2) a new Standards Working Group be established; 
 
(3) the Assessment Working Group and the Hearing Working Group be 

disbanded; 
 
(4) the Assessment Sub-Committee and Hearing Review Sub-Committee 

be disbanded; 
 
(5) the delegations to the Monitoring Officer, as contained in Appendix 2 to 

these minutes be agreed; 
 
(6) the Constitutional amendments contained in Appendix 2 to these 

minutes be agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01226145 Page 1 of 5 
 

MAKING A COMPLAINT ABOUT A COUNCILLOR 
 

APPENDIX 1 
Introduction 

 
1. This note lets you know how to make a complaint that a member of Harrow Council 

has breached the Council’s code of conduct.  
 

2. The Code of Conduct can be found in the Council’s constitution at 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/s117835/Part%205A%20Code%20of%20
Conduct%20for%20Councillors.pdf 
 
How to make a complaint 
 

3. Complaints must be made in writing. You can use the online form or send your 
complaint by post or email to: 
 
The Monitoring Officer 
Civic Centre 
PO Box 2 
Station Road 
Harrow 
HA12UH 
 
Email: standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk 

 
4. You should specify what particular provision of the code of conduct you believe have 

been breached and the details of what happened. 
 

5. If you want to keep your name and address confidential, please indicate this. There is 
a space provided for this purpose on the complaint form. If you choose to remain 
confidential we will not disclose your name and address to the member against whom 
you make the complaint, without your prior consent. However, please provide us with 
your name and contact details so we can acknowledge your complaint and keep you 
informed of progress. 
 

6. The authority does not normally investigate anonymous complaints, unless there is a 
clear public interest in doing so.  
 

7. The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 working 
days of receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of your complaint. 
 

8. If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any 
person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to refer the matter to the Police and other 
regulatory agencies. 
 

9. If you are willing for your complaint to be dealt with by way of mediation then this 
option will be given to you if the Monitoring Officer feels that this is appropriate. 
 
 
The Independent Person 
 

10. This note refers to the Independent Person. This is someone appointed by, but 
independent of, the Council whose role is to carry out certain functions in relation to 

37



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01226145 Page 2 of 5 
 

complaints against members. The Council is required by law to have at least one 
Independent Person.  

 
Stage 1 - filtering 

 
11. The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person is able to filter out 

complaints that:  
 

• do not fall within the code of conduct;   

• are considered to be frivolous or vexatious;  

• are about events which took place more than 6 months’ prior to the receipt of the 
complaint by the Monitoring Officer, unless there are exceptional circumstances; and/ 
or 

• do not merit further investigation on public interest grounds. 
 

12. The public interest test referred to above involves taking into account factors including 
the seriousness of the complaint, the cost of investigating and hearing the complaint 
and the sanctions available.   
 

13. The member complained about will be told about the complaint and asked for their 
comments in writing at this stage. The member also has a right to consult the 
Independent Person. You may also be asked for further information about your 
complaint.  
 
Stage 2 – consideration by the Standards Working Group 
 

14. If your complaint is not filtered out, it will be considered by the Standards Working 
Group (SWG). This is an advisory group each meeting of which will be made up of one 
member from each political group on the Council at the time and an Independent 
Person who will chair the meeting. Its role is to make recommendations to the 
Monitoring Officer. Meetings held at this stage will always be held in private. 
 

15. The SWG will consider the complaint and make one of the following recommendations 
to the Monitoring Officer: 

 

• that the matter should proceed no further either on the grounds that there is no 
breach of the Code or that it is not in the public interest to proceed; or 
 

• That the matter cannot be determined on the facts available and  should be 
investigated and come back before the SWG for further consideration; or 

 

• That there is a breach of the Code of Conduct and that a sanction should or should 
not be applied. If it recommends that a sanction should be applied then it should 
specify the sanction (see paragraph 30 below). 

 
16. The Monitoring Officer will consider the view of the SWG and will decide which of the 

options above should be followed. If he/she decides that an investigation should take 
place the matter will progress to stage 3. 
 
Stage 3 - investigation 
 

17. The Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer, who may be another senior 
officer of the authority, an officer of another authority or an external investigator.  
 

38



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01226145 Page 3 of 5 
 

18. The Investigating Officer will decide whether he/she needs to meet or speak to you to 
understand the nature of your complaint and so that you can explain your 
understanding of events and suggest what documents the Investigating Officer needs 
to see, and who the Investigating Officer needs to interview.  
 

19. The Investigating Officer would normally also write to the member against whom you 
have complained and provide him/her with a copy of your complaint, and ask the 
member to provide his/her explanation of events, and to identify what documents s/he 
needs to see and who s/he needs to interview.  

 
20. At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft report 

and will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to you and to the member 
concerned, to give you both an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report 
which you disagree with or which you consider requires more consideration. 

 
21. Having received and taken account of any comments which you may make on the 

draft report, the Investigating Officer will send his/her final report to the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 
Stage 4 – consideration of investigation report 
 

22. The Monitoring Officer will put forward the investigation report to the SWG for 
consideration. The Group will decide whether to recommend to the Monitoring Officer 
that a local hearing should be held to consider whether it appears that there has been 
a breach of the Code of Conduct. Alternatively, the SWG may recommend, on the 
basis that there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, that 
the Monitoring Officer write to you and the member concerned, notifying you that s/he 
is satisfied that no further action is required, and give you both a copy of the 
Investigating Officer’s final report.  
 

23. The Monitoring Officer will consider the recommendation of the SWG and make a 
decision.  

 
 
Stage 5 – Local Hearing by the Standards Working Group 
 

24. At the start of the hearing, the SWG will decide whether or not the hearing should be 
heard in public with the presumption that it will be heard in public. It will consider 
whether it is in the public interest to do so. 

 
25. The Investigating Officer will present his/her report, call such witnesses as he/she 

considers necessary and make representations to substantiate his/her conclusion that 
the member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct. For this purpose, the 
Investigating Officer may ask you as the complainant to attend and give evidence to 
the SWG. The member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call 
witnesses and to make representations to the SWG as to why he/she considers that 
he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.  

 
26. The SWG, with the benefit of any advice from the Independent Person, will reach a 

view  on whether  the member did or did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
The Chair will inform the member of this finding and the SWG will then consider what 
views and findings of fact and  recommendations it should make to the Monitoring 
Officer. If action is recommended, any such recommendations should be in line with 
the actions available to the Monitoring Officer (see paragraph 30 below). 
 

39



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01226145 Page 4 of 5 
 

27. If the Monitoring Officer disagrees with the recommendations he/she may refer the 
matter back to the SWG for further consideration, stating why he/she disagrees with 
their recommendations. 

 
28. If, after further consideration by the SWG, the Monitoring Officer still disagrees with its 

recommendations he/she may make a decision or refer the matter to the Governance, 
Audit, Risk Management and Standards Committee (GARMSC) for decision. 
 
Stage 6 – Referral to GARMSC 

 
29. If the matter is referred to GARMSC for decision the matter will be considered on the 

basis of a report setting out the alternative positions of the Monitoring Officer and the 
Standards Working Group. No evidence will be heard. 
 
What action can the Monitoring Officer or GARMSC take where a member has 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct? 

 
30. In the event of a finding that there is a breach of the Code the Monitoring Officer or 

GARMSC may:  
 

• Report  the decision to the GARMSC (if the Monitoring Officer has made the 
decision) and then Council for information and place them on the Council’s 
website; 

• Inform the Group Leader (or in the case of an independent member, Council) of a 
recommendation that a member be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-
Committees, or outside body appointments; 

• Inform the Group Leader of any recommendations that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular portfolio responsibilities; 

• Remove the member from outside body appointments;  

• Arrange training for the member or, if the decision is made by GARMSC, instruct 
the Monitoring Officer to do so; 

• Where the breach involves inappropriate use of facilities, withdraw such facilities 
provided to the member by the Council, such as a computer, website and/or email 
and internet access; or 

• Exclude the member from the Council’s offices or other premises, with the 
exception of meeting rooms necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-
Committee meetings; or 

• Censure the member for the breach, in which case the Monitoring Officer will write, 
(following a request from GARMSC if it has made the decision), to the Member and 
a press report will be issued. 

 
 

What happens after the Monitoring Officer or GARMSC have made their 
decision? 

 
31. As soon as reasonably practicable, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal 

decision notice and send a copy to you, to the member, make that decision notice 
available for public inspection and report the decision to the next convenient meeting 
of the Council. This does not apply to decisions made by the Monitoring Officer to filter 
out a complaint. 
 

  Revision of these arrangements 
 

32. The Council may by resolution agree to amend these arrangements. 
Reports to GARMSC 

40



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01226145 Page 5 of 5 
 

 
33. If the Monitoring Officer makes a decision contrary to a recommendation of the 

Standards Working Group that matter should be reported to GARMSC at its next 
meeting. 

 
Appeals 

 
34. There is no right of appeal to the Council in respect of any decision made under this 

process. A complaint may be made to the Local Government Ombudsman, subject to 
him/her accepting jurisdiction. 
 
Publication of the outcome of complaints 
 

35. The Council maintains information about the outcome of complaints on its website 
unless the matter is sensitive and the Monitoring Officer therefore believes it should 
not be made public. The information published in this way in respect of each complaint 
is: 
 

a. The member complained about; 
b. The complainant (unless they have asked for their details to remain 

confidential); 
c. The brief nature of the complaint; 
d. The stage which the complaint finally reached; and 
e. Any sanction applied. 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
 A

G
A

IN
S

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
L

O
R

S
 P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 

D
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It

e
m

D
o
c
s
\8

\9
\4

\A
I0

0
0
8
9
4
9
8
\$

3
v
w

s
n
2
c
u
.d

o
c  

T
h
e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

O
: 

 

•
 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 b

re
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 n

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
  

•
 

th
a
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

•
 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 b
re

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
(s

) 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

p
p
lie

d
. 

If
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
is

 n
o
t 

fi
lt
e
re

d
 o

u
t,
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
. 
 

T
h
e
 M

O
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o
 f
ilt

e
r 

o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h
a
t:
 

 

•
 

d
o
 n

o
t 
fa

ll 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
d
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
 

•
 

a
re

  
fr

iv
o
lo

u
s
 o

r 
v
e
x
a
ti
o
u
s
 

•
 

a
re

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 6

 m
o
n
th

s
 o

ld
 (

u
n
le

s
s
 t
h
e
re

 
a
re

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
) 

•
 

a
re

 n
o
t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 p
u
rs

u
e
. 

M
O

 a
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
If
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

is
 f
ilt

e
re

d
 

o
u
t,
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
g
o
e
s
 

n
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r.

 

C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

  

M
O

 s
e
e
k
s
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 

K
E

Y
 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 g

o
v

e
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
s

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

lv
in

g
 d

is
p

u
te

s
 a

m
ic

a
b

ly
. 

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

–
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
g
ro
u
p
 w
it
h
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
C
h
a
ir
, 

1
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
, 
1
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

(N
o
m
in
a
te
d
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
) 

 
M

O
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 

M
O

 c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 
a
n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
. 

If
 M

O
 d

e
c
id

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 b

re
a
c
h
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
 t
o
 a

 
lo

c
a
l 
h
e
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

M
O

. 
 

 

M
O

 d
is

a
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

M
O

 m
a
y
 r

e
fe

r 
th

e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

If
 a

ft
e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

, 
th

e
 M

O
 s

ti
ll 

d
is

a
g
re

e
s
, 
h
e
/s

h
e
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

r 
re

fe
r 

th
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
, 

A
u

d
it

, 
R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 f
o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
. 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01238193 Page 1 of 2 

 – Proposed constitutional changes 

Article 12, paragraph 12.03 -  Functions of the Monitoring Officer

(c) Supporting the Governance Audit Risk Management and Standards
Committee in respect of standards and advising on the Code of Conduct

The Monitoring Officer will contribute to the promotion and maintenance of 
high standards of conduct through provision of support to the G o v e r n a n c e  A u d i t  
R i s k  M an a g e m e n t  a n d  Standards Committee. He or she will also provide advice to
Members of the Council and act as the proper officer to receive complaints of failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct. He or she will also make decisions about complaints as 
set out in the delegations under Part 3B.

Part 3B – Delegations to Officers – Monitoring Officer, paragraph 7

Monitoring Officer  Statutory source of function 

7 Key role in framework for local 
determination of complaints namely to: 

a. Decide, in consultation with an  
Independent Person, whether to dismiss 
complaints that are outside the Code of 
Conduct,  are considered to be frivolous or
vexatious, are about events which took place 
more than 6 months prior to the receipt of the 
complaint by the Monitoring Officer, unless 
there are exceptional circumstances and/or 
do not merit further investigation on public 
interest grounds.

b. Decide, taking into account the 
recommendations  of
the Standards Working Group following initial 
consideration of a complaint which of the 
following options should be pursued:,

 the complaint should be 
investigated,

the matter should proceed no further 
on the grounds that there is no breach 
of the Code or that it is not in the 
public interest to proceed

 there has been a breach of the Code 
and that a particular sanction should 
be applied

That further information should be 
supplied to the Standards Working 
Group

c. Appoint an investigator to investigate 
allegations of misconduct of Members in 

Sections 28 – 34 
Localism Act 2011 

Deleted:  and subject to their¶
agreement

Deleted:  or

Deleted: If agreement¶
with the Independent Person 
cannot be¶
reached, the decision shall not 
be taken¶
by the Monitoring Officer but 
instead be¶
referred to the Assessment 
Sub-¶
Committee for decision.

Deleted: view

Deleted: Assessment 

Deleted: Group 

Deleted: and

Deleted: ¶
subject to agreement with its 
view

Deleted: whether 

Deleted: a

Deleted: <#>. If the Monitoring 
Officer¶
does not agree with the view of 
the¶
Assessment Working Group 
then the¶
decision shall not be taken by 
the¶
Monitoring Officer but instead 
be¶
referred to the Assessment 
Sub-¶
Committee for decision.

Deleted: I

45



HRWC-CEGV-012106 / 01238193 Page 2 of 2 

accordance with the Standards 
framework.

d. Decide, following consideration of an 
investigation report by the Standards 
Working Group and taking into account their 
recommendations, whether a hearing should 
be held by the Standards Working Group or 
whether no further action is required.

e.Decide, following a local hearing by the 
Standards Working Group and taking into 
account their recommendations, whether to 
take action against a member on the grounds 
that he or she has breached the Code of 
Conduct or to take no action.

f. If he or she feels it appropriate, refer a 
matter back to the Standards Working Group 
for further consideration where  he or she 
disagrees with their recommendations 
following a local hearing

h. If he or she feels it appropriate, refer a 
matter to the Governance Audit Risk 
Management and Standards Committee for 
decision. This can be done where he or she 
disagrees with the recommendations of the 
Standards Working Group following a local 
hearing and further consideration as set out 
in f. above.

e. Advise Members, officers and the public 
on the operation of the Code and how 
alleged breaches should be investigated.

In exercising the delegations under a. - b.
and d. – e to seriously consider the view of 
the Independent Person or Standards 
Working Group as appropriate. 

Part 3A
1) Terms of Reference – Governance Audit Risk Management and Standards Committee

Add:

‘On referral from the Monitoring Officer, to decide whether to take action against a 
member for breach of the Code of Conduct and if so, to decide what action should be 
taken.’ 

2) Delete all references to Hearing Sub-Committee and Assessment Sub-Committee. 

Deleted: d

Deleted: and

Deleted: Assessment 

46



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 

 
PETITION SCHEME  

 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 14
Pages 47 to 60

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



HRWC-CEGV-GA / 01467142 Page 1 of 3 
 

REPORT FOR: 

 

COUNCIL 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

 
26 February 2015 

Subject: 

 

Petition Scheme 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Hugh Peart 
Director of Legal and Governance 
Services 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Wards affected: 

 

None 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Appendix 1 – Proposed Petition Scheme 
Appendix 2 – Proposed changes to the 
Constitution 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out a proposal to amend and simplify the Council’s Petition 
Scheme and to make minor amendments to the Constitution. 

 

Recommendations:  
That Council consider and decide whether to approve the proposed revised 
Petition Scheme and other constitutional changes. 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Background 

 
The Petition Scheme is contained in Appendix A to the Council Procedure Rules. It was 
introduced in July 2010 and has now been reviewed. 
 
The proposed scheme sets out the essential requirements for a petition and how they should 
be submitted. Petitions with over 2000 signatures are considered at a full Council meeting. 
 
 
It is also proposed to make some minor amendments to the constitution as shown in 
Appendix 2. 
 

49



HRWC-CEGV-GA / 01467142 Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Financial Implications 
 
No additional financial resources are required.  
 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No  
  
Separate risk register in place?  No 
 
 

Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No 
 
 

Council Priorities 
 
The Council’s vision: 
 

Working Together to Make a Difference for Harrow  
 
The Petition Scheme allows all those who live, work or study in the borough to set up and /or 
sign petitions on matters of concern to them.  
 
  

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 13.02.15 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Caroline Eccles x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 13.02.15 

   
 

 
 
 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

 NO  
 

 
 
 

50



HRWC-CEGV-GA / 01467142 Page 3 of 3 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Caroline Eccles, Senior Lawyer – Employment and Governance, tel: 0208 424 

7580 
 
 

Background Papers:  None. 
 
 
 

If appropriate, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
 

1. Consultation   NO 

2. Priorities  YES 
 
 

51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

          APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

London Borough of Harrow  
 

 

Petition Scheme 
 

53



- 1 - 

1. Petitions  
 

1.1 Harrow Council recognises that petitions can be a good way to highlight 
issues that people feel strongly about.  A petition may be used by people who 
live, work or study in the borough to formally register a collective request or 
concern about the Council or its services.  We will consider and respond to all 
petitions we receive.    

 
1.2   We will treat as a petition anything that is identified as a petition or seems to 

us intended to be a petition. 
 
1.3 Paper petitions can be sent to the address below for the attention of the 

relevant corporate director as follows: 
 

  

Post Functions and areas of responsibility 

 
Corporate Director, 
Community Health and 
Wellbeing 

 
Community Care, Mental Health, Health Partnerships,  
Adults and Elderly People, Housing and L i b r a r i e s .  

 
Corporate Director, 
Children and Families 

 
Safeguarding & Family Support, Young   People’s  
Services,   Special Needs   and   Education   Support, 
Schools and Colleges 
. 

 
Corporate 
Director, 
Environment and 
Enterprise 

 
Leisure &   Cultural   Services,   Environment 
Services, Planning, Parking, Traffic, Parks and Open 
Spaces, Street Cleaning, Conservation, Licensing, Rubbish 
and Recycling. 

 
Corporate Director,  
Resources 

 
Finance, Access Harrow, Council Tax, Electoral 
Registration, Marriages and Civil Partnerships, Council and 
democracy. 

 

 

  Address: 
Harrow Council  
Civic Centre 
Station Road 
Harrow  HA1 2XY  

 
  
1.4 Alternatively, petitions may be presented at a meeting of the Council, 

Executive or a committee.  Please follow 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1092&Info=1&bcr=
1 
to the Council’s Constitution which contains Procedure Rules for the Council, 
the Executive and the committees.  These rules explain the procedure for 

54



- 2 - 

presenting petitions at meetings of the different bodies and what will happen 
to the petitions.     

 

2. What must a petition include? 
 

2.1 Petitions submitted to the Council must include 
 

• a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition, 
including the action the petitioners wish to take; and 

 

• the names addresses and signatures of people who support the 
petition and who live, work or study in the Borough of Harrow.  The 
address given must be a home, work or study address in the Borough. 

 
2.2 Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address and 

telephone number, for the petition organiser.  This is the person we will 
contact to explain how we will respond to the petition.   

 
2.3 If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above we may decide not to 

do anything further with it.  In that case we will write to you to explain this. 
 
2.4 In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may need to 

deal with your petition differently – if this is the case we will explain the 
reasons and discuss any revised timescale which will apply.  

 

3. What will the Council do when it receives a petition? 
 
 

3.1 The relevant department will send an acknowledgement to the petition 
organiser within 15 working days of receiving the petition.  The 
acknowledgement will explain what will happen next and when they can 
expect to hear from the department again. 
 

3..2 If the department think it is appropriate to take the action requested 
immediately, the acknowledgement will explain this, and the petition will be 
closed.  
 

3.3 If another procedure is more suitable for dealing with the petition the petition 
organiser will be informed of this.  
 

3..4  No action will be taken on a petition which the relevant Corporate Director 
considers is vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate, and the reasons 
for this will be explained  in their acknowledgement of the petition. 

 
 3.5 If the petition concerns a particular area of Council business, it will usually be 

referred to a committee or sub-committee or other body that deals with that 
area and may be considered at a meeting.  Alternatively, the relevant 
Corporate Director or Portfolio Holder may respond to the petition. Committee 
meetings are usually held in public, so people who are interested in the 

55



- 3 - 

petition will be able to observe any discussion that takes place. If the petition 
has over 2000 signatures it will be presented at a meeting of full Council (see 
section 5 below). 

 

4. Petitions involving partners / other authorities 
 

4.1 If the petition is about an issue over which we have no direct control (for 
example the local hospital) we will consider referring the matter to the 
Executive to take up the matter on behalf of the community with the relevant 
body.  We work with a large number of official partners and where possible 
will work with these partners to respond to your petition.  If we are unable to 
do this then we will explain why.   

 
4.2 If the petition is about something that is the responsibility of a different 

Council we will forward the petition to that Council, or take other appropriate 
action, and will notify the petition organiser about what we have done.  

 

5. Petitions with over 2000 signatures 
 

5.1  If a petition contains more than 2000 signatures of people who live, work or 
study in the Borough (the address in the Borough at which they live, work or 
study must be provided), it will be considered / debated at a meeting of full 
Council.  The Council will try to consider the petition at its next meeting, 
although in some circumstances this may not be possible - for example, when 
the petition is submitted too close to the meeting date, in which case 
consideration will take place at the following meeting.  The petition organiser 
will be invited to the meeting to read the terms of the petition to the meeting 
and the petition will then be discussed by Councillors.  The presentation must 
last no longer than one minute and the discussion by councillors will last a 
maximum of 10 minutes.  
 

5.2  Following consideration / discussion full Council may refer the petition to the 
Cabinet, a committee or a Corporate Director to determine the matter, taking 
into account the views expressed by full Council.  

 
5.3 The petition organiser will receive written confirmation of this decision.  This 

decision will also be published on our website as part of the minutes of full 
council. 

6. E-petitions 
 

6.1 We welcome e-petitions which are created and submitted through a website 
which offers this facility.  E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper 
petitions set out above.   

 
6.2 It is possible to have the same petition in paper form and e-petition form at 

the same time, although signatories should only sign one copy of the petition.  
 
 

56



- 4 - 

7. Alternatives to a petition 
 

7.1 There are other ways in which you can let us know what you think about our 
actions and decisions that may be more appropriate than a petition.  Follow 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/353/complaints-
procedure/1794/complaining_about_the_council to see how else you can 
have your say.  

 
 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



HRWC-CEGV-GA / 01461279 Page 1 of 1 

          APPENDIX 2 

Proposed amendments to the constitution in respect of the petitions 

Executive Procedure Rules

15.3  Notice and consideration of petitions 

15.3.1 There is no need for any advance notice to be given of the wish to present a petition 

to the Executive. 

47.2   Notice and Consideration of Petitions

There is no need for any advance notice to be given of the wish to present a petition 

to a Panel, Forum, Sub-panel or Sub-forum. 

Council Procedure Rules

Notice and Consideration of Petitions

10.2 There is no need for any advance notice to be given of the wish to present a petition to 

Council.

15.2 Notice and Consideration of Petitions

15.2.1  There is no need for any advance notice to be given of the wish to present a petition 

to a Committee or sub-committee. 

Terms of reference of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The following consequential amendment will need to be made: 

Delete –  

14. To call senior officers to give evidence in response to petitions and/or to review the 

actions taken by the Council in response to petitions in accordance with the Council’s 

Petition Scheme. 

Deleted: Save as is mentioned 
in paragraph 15.1.3 above t

Deleted:  but if 10 days notice 
is given to the Monitoring 
Officer a note of the petition will 
appear on the agenda for the 
meeting

Deleted: Save as is mentioned 
in paragraph 49.1.1.3 above t

Deleted:  but if seven clear 
working days notice is given to 
the Monitoring Officer a note of 
the petition will appear on the 
agenda for the meeting

Deleted:  but if 7 clear working 
days notice is given to the 
Monitoring Officer a note of the 
petition will appear on the 
summons for the meeting

Deleted:  but if seven clear 
working days notice is given to 
the Monitoring Officer a note of 
the petition will appear on the 
agenda for the meeting

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 

 
DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY 

PROCEDURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, LEADER 

AND DEPUTY LEADER, AND USE OF SPECIAL 

URGENCY PROCEDURE 

 
 

Agenda Item 17
Pages 61 to 66

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

COUNCIL 

Date of Meeting: 

 

26 February 2015 

Subject: 

 

Decisions taken under Urgency 

Procedure by Portfolio Holders, 

Leader and Deputy Leader, and Use 

of Special Urgency Procedure  

 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Hugh Peart – Director of Legal and 
Governance Services 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A – Decisions taken as a matter of 
urgency 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 

 
This report sets out a decision taken under urgency procedure rules by Cabinet, 
the Leader and Portfolio Holders, and use of the special urgency procedure since 
the meeting of the Council on 27 February 2014. 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

63



 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
In accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 47.6 set out in Part 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution, any Executive decisions taken as a matter of urgency are 
reported to the next available meeting of the Council.  
 
Appendix A sets out decisions taken as matters of urgency since the Council 
meeting held on 13 November 2014. 
 
In accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules and paragraph 19 
of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the use of the Special Urgency 
procedure in relation to Executive decisions is to be reported quarterly to Council. 
 
The Special Urgency procedure has not been used since the last Council 
meeting on 13 November 2014.    
  

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
Where appropriate, Ward Councillors, outside organisations and interested 
parties were consulted on individual reports considered by Cabinet, the Leader 
and Portfolio Holders. 
 
Where decisions were deemed urgent, the agreement of the Chairman of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee was obtained that the decision would not be 
subject to the call-in procedure. 
 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
As per the individual reports to Cabinet, the Leader and Portfolio Holders. 
 

Ward Councillors notified: YES 

 

Section 5 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:   
Elaine McEachron, Democratic & Electoral Services Manager 
Tel: 020 8424 1097 
E-mail: Elaine.mceachron@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:   
Council’s Constitution/Portfolio Holder Decision report/Cabinet 
agenda 

64



 

APPENDIX A 
 
Urgent Decisions 
 
The following urgent decisions have been made since Council on 27 February 
2014: 
 

Subject Decision Maker 
(Portfolio 
Holder/Leader/Cabinet) 
 

Reason for Urgency 

Future Organisation of 
Whitchurch First School 
and Nursery and 
Whitchurch Junior 
School 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Children, Schools and 
Families – 18 December 
2014 

It is in the interests of 
both schools to have 
certainty about the future 
organisation of the 
schools at the earliest 
opportunity.  Permanent 
headteacher 
arrangements need to be 
secured as soon as 
possible to ensure 
continuity of leadership to 
enhance education 
standards for the children 
in the longer term. 

A final decision about the 
future organisation of the 
schools could be 
achieved by February 
2015 if an urgent 
Portfolio Holder decision 
is made about whether or 
not to publish statutory 
proposals.  An urgent 
decision would enable 
arrangements to be 
made before Christmas 
for publication on the first 
day of term on 5 January 
2015.  The outcome 
could then be reported to 
February Cabinet for 
determination. 
 

 

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 COUNCIL MINUTES
	Council Extraordinary - 22 January 2015- Minutes

	6 PETITIONS
	Minute to Council - Petition
	Minute Extract - Petitions - Cabinet to Council

	8 CORPORATE PLAN 2015-2019
	9 FINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2018/19
	10 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT INCLUDING PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS, MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 2015/16
	11 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 TO 2018/19
	12 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2016/17 TO 2018/19
	13 STANDARDS COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE
	Rec to Council - Standards Complaints Procedure
	Rec to Council - Standards Complaints Procedure - Appendix 1a
	Rec to Council - Standards Complaints Procedure - Appendix 1b
	Rec to Council - Standards Complaints Procedure - Appendix 2

	14 PETITION SCHEME
	Council petition scheme - Cover report
	Harrow Council Petition Scheme appendix 1
	Harrow Council Petition Scheme - Appendix 2 - Procedure rules and terms of ref amendments

	17 DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER, AND USE OF SPECIAL URGENCY PROCEDURE
	PH decision report for Council

	19 INFORMATION REPORT - REMUNERATION PACKAGES AND SEVERANCE PAYMENTS OF £100,000 OR GREATER

